
DESERT WATER AGENCY    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FEBRUARY 6, 2018                                                              REGULAR MEETING AGENDA              
 

   REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 

Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  January 16, 2018  CIOFFI  
                                                       

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS -  A. Executive – January 30, 2018  CIOFFI  
 

5. PUBLIC INPUT:  
Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public may speak on any item listed on the agenda 
as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on 

items not listed on the agenda.                                                            
  

6. ITEMS FOR ACTION: 

A. Request Acceptance of 2016-17 Replacement Pipeline Project  JOHNSON 
  

7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

A. State Water Contractors’ Meeting – January 18, 2018  RIDDELL 
B. Butterfly Garden Project (PPT)  METZGER 

  

8. OUTREACH & CONSERVATION  METZGER 

 A. Media Information 
 B. Activities 
 

9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 

10. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A.   CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
     Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 

B.    CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
    Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
    Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION   
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 

 

 D.   CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
   Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
   Property: APN 680-180-034; 3.23 acre parcel located 1,000 feet East of S. Gene Autry Trail on South Side of     
   Dinah Shore Drive 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Scott Stokes 
  Under Negotiation: Price and Terms  
 

11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

12. ADJOURN 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with 
a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working hours 
prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members, which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be 
obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



       8870 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/16/18 

MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

January 16, 2018 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
          Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President ) 
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
 
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
 John Ruiz, Interim Human Resources Mgr. ) 
    
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
    
Public: David Freedman, P.S. Sustainability Comm. ) 
    

Attendance 

18001.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
18002.  President Cioffi called for approval of the December 19, 2017 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
 
  Vice President Stuart moved for approval. After a second by 
Director Oygar, the minutes were approved as written.  
 
18003.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated in late October 2017, a large boulder 
dislodged from the cliff above the Araby pipeline and slid into the pipeline 
which caused extensive damage. DWA contracted with Borden Excavating, 
Inc. to video inspect and replace the damaged pipeline. All of the work has 
been completed and the pipeline was placed back in service on January 8, 
2018. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that for the 2017 calendar year, 
approximately 378,450 acre-feet was delivered to the Whitewater Spreading 
Basins and 9,190 acre-feet to the Mission Creek Spreading Basins. The 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 12/19/17 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
8” Araby Pipeline 
Repair Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Water Delivery Update 
 
 
 

2 



       8871 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/16/18 

Whitewater Hydro Plant produced over 7 million kwh for the year, enough 
to power approximately 600 homes for a year. The total amount of revenue 
received from SCE for the power production was $643,718, which was 
shared equally between DWA and CVWD. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause stated that SGMA 
regulations do not provide a deadline for DWR’s review of the submitted 
Alternative Plans. According to SGMA regulations, DWR must complete its 
review of “New” Groundwater Sustainability Plans (non-alternative plans) 
within 2 years. DWR has stated it wants to treat the Supplemental Plans like 
“New Plans”; therefore, they intend to review the Alternative Plans within 2 
years of the submittal deadline, January 1, 2019. Regardless of the fact that 
DWR has not completed its review of DWA’s submitted Alternative Plans 
for the Mission Creek and Indio Subbasins, they are requiring an update of 
the plans by April 1, 2018. It has been proposed by CVWD that the update 
be carried out by Stantec (formerly Montgomery Watson Harza Global). The 
GSA’s in the Mission Creek and Indio Subbasins are discussing this proposal 
and funding split. DWA has agreed with approving Stantec’s proposal and to 
an equal funding split among the participants in these subbasins. So far, only 
CVWD and DWA have reached this agreement.  
 
  Mr. Krause stated on January 4 at approximately 4:30 p.m., 
construction staff responded to a hit fire hydrant on Radio Rd., east of 
McCarthy Rd; this was a hit and run. The hydrant was replaced and put back 
in service. The water loss was a fully open 6-inch hydrant bury which ran for 
approximately 30 minutes. A police report was filed. 
           
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted the current system 
leak data, and meetings and activities he participated in during the past 
several weeks.  
  
18004.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the December 27, 2017 
and January 9, 2018 Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s 
packet. 
 
18005.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
   
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period.  
  
18006.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of December 2017. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating Fund 
received $2,463,843 in Water Sales Revenue, $90,770 in Reclamation Sales 
Revenue and $283,080 in Meter Sales and Services Revenue. $958,755 was 
paid out in Accounts Payable. Year-to-date Water Sales are 6% over budget, 

GM Report 
(Cont.) 
Water Delivery Update 
 
 
 
 
SGMA Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hit Fire Hydrant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
System Leak Data,  
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities  
 
 
 
Committee Reports: 
Executive 12/27/17 & 
January 9, 2018 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (December) 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8872 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/16/18 

Year-to-date Total Revenues are 11% over budget and Year-to-date Total 
Expenses are 19% under budget. There were 22,503 active services as of 
December 31 compared to 22,498 as of November 30. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$4,968,175 was received in Property Tax Revenue and $51,922 from SCE 
for November Whitewater Hydro Power Sales. There was $10,000 included 
in the miscellaneous receipts total from CVWD for Round 1 Proposition 84 
grant funds (escrow refund). $679,825 was paid in State Water Project 
Charges (YTD SWP Payments $7,981,820). 
 
  Reporting on the Wastewater Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$6,751 was received in sewer capacity charges. There were a total of 48 sewer 
contracts, with total delinquents of 15 (31%). $64,991 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. 
  
18007.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for approval of Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) update for the Customer Assistance Program with United Way of the 
Desert (UWD). 
 
  Mr. Krause noted in September 2016, the Agency entered into 
a MOU with UWD establishing a need-based customer assistance program. 
Proposed changes include: 1) Allow customers to apply twice a year, and 2) 
UWD’s administration fee change from $50 per month to 10% of all 
transactions ($5 per successful customer inquiry). The Agency expects a 
reduction in administrative costs with this change. Staff requests Board 
authorization for the Agency to enter into a new MOU with UWD updating 
its customer assistance program. Also requested is authorization for the 
General Manager to make minor modifications, to the MOU in the future; 
major changes would be brought back to the Board of Directors for review. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendations regarding the United Way of the Desert customer 
assistance program. Vice President Stuart seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously. 
 
18008.  President Cioffi called upon Assistant General Manager 
Johnson to present staff’s request for approval of addition of an Outreach 
Specialist I/II and January 1, 2018 Position Classification Schedule. 
 
  Mr. Johnson explained the Outreach and Conservation 
department is comprised of the Outreach and Conservation Manager and 
Associate positions. Within the past two years, it has become evident that 
current staffing levels cannot effectively handle both public outreach and 
conservation. The 2017/2018 approved budget included money for a new 
position within the department. The new position (Outreach Specialist I/II) 

Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report  
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Action: 
Request Approval of 
MOU Update with 
United Way of the 
Desert 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Approval of 
Outreach Specialist I/II 
& January 2018 
Position Classification 
Schedule 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8873 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/16/18 

would focus on public outreach and promote DWA in publications, social 
media and at public events. Both the Outreach and Conservation Manager 
and management have recommended this position to focus entirely on public 
outreach. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Johnson noted that a salary survey 
was taken of five comparison agencies. Based upon the survey, staff is 
proposing a monthly salary range 41 ($5,458-$6,650) for the Outreach 
Specialist I position and monthly salary range 45 ($6,024-$7,343) for the 
Outreach Specialist II position. Funding of $67,982 ($5665.16 monthly 
equivalent) was included in the 2017/18 fiscal year budget and will result in 
a 1% payroll increase. Staff recommends approval of addition of an Outreach 
Specialist I/II and January 1, 2018 Position Classification Schedule. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation of addition of an Outreach Specialist I/II and January 1, 
2018 Position Classification Schedule. After a second by Director Ewing, the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
18009.  President Cioffi called upon Assistant General Manager 
Johnson to present staff’s request for adoption of DWA policy prohibiting 
workplace bullying effective January 16, 2018. 
 
  Mr. Johnson explained like harassment, bullying hurts another 
person through cruel, offensive and insulting behavior, but is not 
discriminatory. Staff with the recommendation of the Agency’s labor 
attorney; desire to be at the forefront of addressing this issue, which may be 
regulated in the near future. The proposed policy would prohibit workplace 
bullying. Staff recommends adoption of the proposed Policy Prohibiting 
Workplace Bullying effective January 16, 2018. 
 
  Vice President Stuart questioned Section IIIB stating 
“supervisors” who observe. 
 
  Discussion ensued regarding the consistency of Section IIIB 
with the proposed revised Drug Free and Safe Workplace policy in the next 
agenda item which states  “any employee” who observes… rather than 
“supervisors”.  
 
  Staff was directed to clarify the reporting procedures as 
mentioned in Section IIIB. 
 
  Director Oygar made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation noting the revision as discussed. After a second by Director 
Ewing, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Approval of 
Outreach Specialist I/II 
& January 2018 
Position Classification 
Schedule 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Adoption of 
DWA Policy 
Prohibiting Workplace 
Bullying 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8874 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/16/18 

18010.  President Cioffi called upon Assistant General Manager 
Johnson to present staff’s request for adoption of DWA Drug Free and Safe 
Workplace Policy Revisions. 
 
  Mr. Johnson stated with the passage of Proposition 64 (Adult 
use marijuana act), revisions have been proposed to the Agency’s Drug Free 
and Safe Workplace Policy that address Prop. 64. The revisions have been 
reviewed and approved by the Agency’s labor attorney, Joseph Ortiz. 
 
  Because of the various changes in this industry, Director Ewing 
suggested revisiting the policy on a more frequent basis, as needed. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. After a second by Director Oygar, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
18011.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for Board authorization of stipend and mileage 
reimbursement to Vice President Stuart. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated there will be an upcoming Irrigation Leader 
workshop in Phoenix, Arizona. Both General Manager Krause and Vice 
President Stuart will be meeting with John B. Weldon, Jr. and Patrick Sigl, a 
Supervising Attorney in the Land and Water Rights Section of Law Services 
for the Salt River Project advising on water rights and water rights litigation. 
Vice President Stuart is requesting the Board authorize his expense 
reimbursement of mileage and one day of service to the Board. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. After a second by President Cioffi, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
  
18012.  Mr. Krause provided a PowerPoint presentation on the 2017 
Capital Improvement projects, which included: (1) Pipeline replacements; (2)  
Vehicle replacements; (3) Replacement equipment; (4) Vegetation screen 
installation; (5) Well 17 Fence installation; (6) Reclamation Plant Fence 
installation; (7) Electrical Upgrades; (8) Valve upgrades; (9) Filter upgrades; 
(10) Snow Creek Bridge lumber replacement; (11) Operations Center 
landscape rock installation; (12) Server room air conditioning installation; 
and (13) Operations Center carpet replacement. 
 
18013.  President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to provide a 
report on the December 21, 2017 meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
State Water Contractors, Inc. 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Adoption of 
DWA Drug Free and 
Safe Workplace Policy 
Revisions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Authorization 
of Stipend & Mileage 
Reimbursement to Vice 
President Stuart 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
2017 Capital 
Improvement Projects 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWC Mtg. 12/21/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8875 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/16/18 

  Mr. Riddell provided a report on the following items: 1) DWR 
Policy Memo on Water Management Issues, 2) Board Action Items, 3) Water 
Supply Report, and 4) Update on Water Supply Objections.  
  
18014.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the December water reduction figures.  
 
  Mr. Krause reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 7% reduction in potable water production during December 2017 
compared to the same month in 2013. He noted the amount of fresh water 
outflow to the ocean was 434,840-acre feet. 
 
18015.  President Cioffi noted that Board packets included Outreach & 
Conservation reports for December 2017. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger noted the upcoming events for later this month 
and February. 
 
18016.  President Cioffi stated that he and Outreach & Conservation 
Manager Metzger attended CVWD’s January 9 Board meeting where they 
presented a resolution recognizing CVWD’s 100 year anniversary. 
 
18017.  At 9:21 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session for 
the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District 
vs. Desert Water Agency, (D) Potential Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), One case; and (E) Real Property Negotiators, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Property: APN 680-180-034, 
Agency Negotiator(s) Mark S. Krause, General Manager, Negotiating 
Parties: Scott Stokes, Under Negotiation: Price and Terms. 
 
18018.  At 11:04 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
   
18019.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 11:05 a.m. 
      __________________________                                                           
      James Cioffi,  President 
 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
SWC Mtg. 12/21/17 
 
 
 
December Water 
Reduction Figures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Outreach & 
Conservation – 
December 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors 
Comments/Requests 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C.  Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
D. Potential Litigation – 
1 Case 
E. Real Property 
Negotiators 
APN No. 680-180-034 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene –No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment  

 



3 

Page 1 of 11 
 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

FEBRUARY 6, 2018 
 

  
  
 

 

On the weekend of January 19, THE WORKS FLOOR & WALL removed and replaced the carpet 
in the Board Conference room, Finance Director’s office, and the second half of the Information 
Systems department. Grayco Electric removed the trip hazard in the Finance Director’s office by 
saw cutting a trench in the concrete and routed electrical wiring and data wire through conduit to 
his computer. Construction and Information Systems departments contributed their skills and talent 
to this project. This concludes the carpet replacement project for the 2017-18 Capital Improvement 
budget. 
 
                                                                                        Board Conference Room 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 11 

 

 
Carpet Install 
(Cont.) 
 
Finance Director’s 
Office 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 11 
 

 
Carpet Install 
(Cont.) 
 
 
Info. Systems Dept. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 11 

 

 

On January 15 at approximately 7:00 a.m., construction responded to a hit fire hydrant on the 500 
block of Yorba Rd. Staff was able to replace the gasket, breakaway bolts and put the hydrant back 
into service. The estimated water loss was based on a fully open 6-inch fire hydrant bury which ran 
for approximately 40 minutes. A police report was filed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
   



Page 5 of 11 
 

 

On January 26, construction was notified that two 2-inch backflows were stolen from 2440 A-F and 
2450 A-F Birdie Way (Tahquitz Creek Golf Course area). Construction personnel made repairs, 
replaced the backflows and put them back into service. The customer filed a police report and the 
water loss was metered. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 11 

 

 
 

On January 26 there was another backflow stolen, also from the Tahquitz Creek Golf Resort area. 
This was a 3/4-inch backflow located on Brentwood Dr., south of Cherry Hills Dr., which provides 
service to Tahquitz Creek Golf Resort. Staff received its manager’s approval to replace the backflow 
and placed it back into service. The water loss was metered and a police report was filed by the 
customer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 11 
 

 

DWA offices will be closed on Monday, February 19 in observance of the President’s Day holiday. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Water Delivery Update 
 
For the month of January 2018, approximately 10,200 AC-FT was delivered to the Whitewater 
Spreading Basins. On January 30, 2018, delivery flows were reduced from 170 CFS to 75 CFS. 
MWD requested the reduction so that they could deliver more water to their facilities. The reduction 
forced the shutdown of the hydro plant. The flow rate will remain at 75 CFS until February 13, 2018, 
when the flow will be reduced to 0 CFS for the aqueduct maintenance. The maintenance work will 
continue through mid-March 2018.  
 
The Whitewater Hydro plant generated approximately 636,390 kWh for the month of January 2018 
and we anticipate receiving approximately $55,900 from SCE for the electricity produced. The plants 
turbine and generator equipment will be inspected by a qualified contractor during the aqueduct 
maintenance shutdown period, making any necessary repairs that may be required.  
 

 
 

SWP Allocation 
On January 29, we received notice from DWR that our water allocation will be increased to 20%. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STREET NAME QUARTER SECTION NUMBER OF LEAKS

LIVMOR AVE 4413NE 6

VISTA CHINO (20") 4411NW 6

MOUNTAIN VIEW PL 4410SE 5

CHIA RD 4411NW 5

CAMINO PAROCELA 4519NE 5

RAMON RD (12") 4519NW 3

CHAPARRAL RD 4411NW 2

FRANCIS DR 4402NW 2

VIA MONTE VISTA 4410SW 2

PAROCELA PL (WARM SANDS DR) 4423NE 2

VIA VAQUERO 4413SE 2

COTTONWOOD RD 4411NW 1

RACQUET CLUB RD (8") 4402NW 1

DESERT HOLLY CIR 4402NW 1

LAUREL CIR 4402NW 1

PLAIMOR AVE 4413NE 1

CAHUILLA RD (5") 4410SE 1

CHINO DR 4410SE 1

DESERT PALMS DR 4413NW 1

VENTURA RD 4401SE 1

OLEANDER RD 4519NE 1

PALO VERDE AVE 4423SW 1

WILLIAMS RD 4519NE 1

RACQUET CLUB RD 4403SW 1

CERRITOS DR 4413NW 1

ARQUILLA RD 4411SE 1

DEL LAGO RD 4401NW 1

RAMON RD (12") 4424NE 1

DEBBY DR 4413NW 1

CERRITOS DR 4401SW 1

SUNRISE WAY (8") 4423NE 1

INDIAN CANYON DR (10") 4415SE 1

VIA DEL NORTE 4403SE 1

LURING DR 4413NW 1

AVENIDA CABALLEROS (20") 4411NW 1

N RIVERSIDE DR 4423NW 1

TOTAL LEAKS IN SYSTEM: 65

* Streets highlighted in green are scheduled to be replaced as part of the

2017/2018 Replacement Pipeline Project

* Streets highlighted in blue are being proposed as part of the

2018/2019 Replacement Pipeline Project

SYSTEM LEAK DATA

(PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 10, 2018 THRU JANUARY 30, 2018)





Page 10 of 11 

 

   
General Manager’s Meetings and Activities: 
 
Meetings: 
 
01/15/18 Weekly Staff Meeting, I.S. Meeting, Snow Crk Security DWA 
01/16/18 Bi-Monthly Regular DWA Board Meeting DWA 
01/17/18 SWC Monthly Delta Committee Meeting Sacramento 
01/17/18 SWC Policy Meeting Sacramento 
01/18/18 SWC Monthly Board Meeting Sacramento 
01/18/18 SWC-SFWCA Monthly Board Meeting Sacramento 
11/19/18 Sites Reservoir Committee Monthly Meeting Sacramento 
01/22/18 DWA Awards Breakfast Coordination Mtg DWA 
01/22/18 Cal WaterFix Contract Amendment Caucus Conf. Call 
01/22/18 DWA/CVWD/MWD Monthly Coordination Call Conf. Call 
01/22/18 Weekly Bob Reeb Mtg. Conf. Call 
01/23/18 Indio SB Alt. GSP Annual Rpt Kickoff Mtg. CVWD 
01/23/18 2004 Settlement Agmt General Managers Qtrly Mtg CVWD 
01/24/18 Mtg w/CVWD planning for MWD Agmt Amendments Conf. Call 
01/24/18 CRA Shutdown Coordination Meeting Conf. Call 
01/24/18 Colorado Water Congress – Water Law Seminar Conf. Call 
01/24/18 Indio SB GSA & Tribal Workgroup Meeting Coachella 
01/25/18 MSWD PRA DWA Staff Coordination Meeting DWA 
01/26/18 DWA Awards Breakfast DWA 
01/27/18 Weekly Staff Meeting, I.S. Meeting, Snow Crk Security DWA 
01/28/18 Construction Department Mtg DWA 
01/30/18 Irrigation Leader O&M Workshop Presentation Phoenix 
01/30/18 Water Management Discussions Phoenix 

 
Activities: 
 
1) SGMA – Annual Alternative GW Sustainability Plan Update Due in April 2018 
2) E-Billing – Implementing customer payment history capabilities 
3) E-Billing - Implementing Customer One Time Payment Option 
4) Outreach Talking Points – KESQ 
5) Snow Creek Hydro SCE contract extension – ongoing 
6) Whitewater Hydro – Facility Bypass Pipeline 
7) State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee     
      (Standing) 
8) MSWD Settlement Agreement and MOA from Mediation 
9) ACBCI Section 14 Facilities & Easements 
10) Lake Oroville Spillway Damage 
11) Replacement Pipelines 2017-2018 
12) CWF – Phasing Concepts 
13) DWA/CVWD/MWD Operations Coordination/Article 21/Pool A/Pool B/Yuba Water 
14) DWA/CVWD/MWD Agreements Update 
15) SGMA Alternative Plans and Bridge Documents 
16) SWP 2018 Water Supply 
 



Page 11 of 11 
 

Activities: 
(Cont.) 
 
17)  ACBCI Law Suits 
18)  Lake Perris Dam Remediation 
19)  Section 14 Pipeline Easements 
20)  DOI Regulation 
21)  218 Applicability to Groundwater Recharge Assessment 
22)   A.B. 1562 
23)  Repair of Facility Access Roads Damaged in the September 10 Storm (Araby) 
24)  Whitewater Hydro Operations Coordination with Recharge Basin O&M 
25)  Multi-Agency Rate Study 
26)  SGMA Tribal Stakeholder Meetings 
27)  Whitewater Spreading Basins – BLM Permits 
28)  Lake Perris Dam Seepage Recovery Project Participation 
29)  Cal Waterfix Cost Allocation 
30)  DWA Surface Water Filtration Feasibility Study 
31)  Modification of our CVRWMP Boundary 
32)  MSWD Mediation 
33)  Review Documents for MSWD Public Records Act Request 
34)  CV-Link Solar 
35)  S1464  - Water Conservation Tax Parity Act (Conservation Rebate Tax) 
36)  CVWD 100 Year Anniversary Resolution 
37)  CRA & SWP Tours 2018 
38)  3M Glass Shield 
39)  Snow Creek Gate Locks 
40)  MCSB Delivery Updates 
41)  DWA SWP Contract Amendment No. 20 
 

  

 
 
 
 





6-A 

BoardReports/2018/JOHNSON 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 6, 2018 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST ACCEPTANCE OF 2016/2017 REPLACEMENT 

PIPELINES (W. PASEO EL MIRADOR, E. PASEO EL MIRADOR, 
PASATIEMPO RD., LINDA VISTA RD., BROADMOOR DR., VIA 
MONTE VISTA, E. CAMINO NORTE, VINE AVE., STEVENS RD., 
W. CAMINO NORTE, AND SUNNY DUNES RD.) 

 
 
The 2016/2017 Capital Improvement Budget included Work Order 16-160 for installation 
of replacement pipelines in the amount of $3,372,600.00 (including project engineering, 
overheads, construction and inspection).   
 
All project work was performed by Borden Excavating, Inc. under Work Order 16-160,  a 
total of 15,989 linear feet of 8” and 16” ductile iron pipe has been installed.  Additional 
streets were added to the project via change order due to a significant increase in leak 
activity that resulted in the need for immediate pipeline replacement.  The original project 
completion date was extended to December 15, 2017, as a result of the additional streets.  
The final pipelines were accepted into the system on November 27, 2017.  All remaining 
punch list items and pavement rehabilitation were completed as of January 15, 2018. 
 
The adjusted contract amount is summarized as follows: 
 
Engineer’s Estimate                                                          $3,113,100.00 
Original Contract                    $2,314,777.00 
Change Order #1                       ($21,916.67) 
Change Order #2                                                                  $415,720.00 
Change Order #3                                                                    $38,937.20 
Final Contract Amount         $2,747,517.53 

 
Contract Change Order No. 1 yielded a net decrease in the contract amount as a result 
of the following items: 
 

1.  Removal of bid items for pavement, pipe and repair of existing utilities.  Said 
work was not completed. 

 
 
 



 
 
Contract Change Order No. 2 yielded a net increase in the contract amount as a result of 
the following items: 
 

1. Addition of 2,625 linear feet of 8” ductile iron pipe and appurtenances on 
Saturmino Dr., Belding Dr., and Desert Palms Dr., including pavement 
replacement. 

  
Contract Change Order No. 3 yielded a net increase in the contract amount as a result of 
the following items:  
 

1. Additional paving required in the Las Palmas neighborhood due to the removal 
of larger than anticipated boulders in the vicinity of the mainline trench that 
resulted in wider trenches than anticipated. 

 
Total estimated charges for the 2016/2017 Replacement Pipelines project on Work Order 
16-160 are $3,013,850.00 (including project engineering, overheads, construction and 
inspection). 
 
To date, no stop notices have been filed with the Agency. 
 
Staff recommends the Agency accept said work in the amount of $2,747,517.53. 
Subsequent to Board acceptance, a Notice of Completion will be filed and the Agency will 
make final payment to Borden Excavating, Inc.  Thereafter, following the lien period, the 
Agency will release retained funds to Borden Excavating, Inc. 
 













7-A 

01358.00000\30566851.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

January 18, 2018 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: JANUARY 18, 2018 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The January 18, 2018 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water 

Contractors, Inc., was conducted at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento. 

1. Meeting with New DWR Director.  As is normally the case each month, 

SWC committee meetings were conducted at the Resources Building the afternoon prior to the 

SWC Board meeting.  Those in attendance at the committee meetings received a visit from new 

DWR Director Carla Nemeth.  Previous DWR Director Grant Davis retired from the position only 

one month after being appointed, a development that caught most Contractors by surprise.  The 

reason for his departure was not announced, leaving everyone to suspect that there may have been 

discomfort on both sides.  The vacancy was quickly filled by the appointment of Carla Nemeth, 

who is well known to Contractors as a longtime DWR upper level manager who has been 

significantly involved in Delta issues, including the Cal WaterFix project.  SWC staff have 

expressed a high level of confidence in her.  Director Nemeth addressed several issues, stating that 

November 15, 2018 is the target date for completing the State Water Contract amendment process, 

including CEQA, for the Cal Water Fix project.  She stated that the plan is to have the “agreement 

in principle” wrapped up by June.  Director Nemeth also confirmed that Governor Brown is “really 

into” the tunnel project.  She noted that he has been talking about the project for the last seven 

years as Governor.  

2. General Counsel’s Report.  The SWC Board meeting, the following day, 

began with a closed session discussion with SWC General Counsel Stefanie Morris.  Although 

some of the detail should remain confidential, the first topic included a lengthy discussion of the 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00000\30566851.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

subsidence problems that are impacting the California Aqueduct, resulting in reduced delivery 

capacity in portions of the aqueduct.  The discussion included possible options for addressing the 

problem, which spans approximately 90 miles of the aqueduct.   

Attorney Morris also reported that the continued hearing before the State Water 

Resources Control Board for approval of a new point of diversion north of Sacramento, to 

accommodate the tunnel project, had been further continued to February 2, 2018, because some of 

the parties had filed motions to terminate the proceedings on the grounds that there had been illegal 

ex parte communications with State Board staff. The State Board will need to rule on those 

motions.  If the State Board does not grant the motions we should anticipate the filing of a legal 

action in the Superior Court to stay the proceedings. 

Attorney Morris also reported that the various CEQA challenges to the tunnel 

project had been consolidated and will remain with the Superior Court in Sacramento.  

3. Water Supply Report.  Molly White from DWR was present to provide a 

report on water supply conditions.  She stated that releases from Lake Oroville were at the rate of 

1,750 cubic feet per second, and that the elevation of the lake was just under 707 feet, or about 40 

feet below the maximum allowed elevation according to this year’s operations plan.  She said that 

two to three inches of precipitation were expected for the Feather River Basin from the next storm, 

which was also expected to increase the snow pack.  As of the meeting date, precipitation in the 

Feather River watershed was only at 44% of average.  DWR was diverting water from the Delta 

at the rate of 3,000 cubic feet per second, and the federal contractors were diverting water at the 

rate 3,500 cubic feet per second.  She also noted that the SWP share of storage in the San Luis 

Reservoir was at 730,000 acre feet, and that the reservoir was nearly full.  Nonetheless, with the 

anticipated demand from Contractors, she said that it was unlikely that DWR would need to spill 

the carry over water currently stored in the San Luis Reservoir. 

4. Legislative Report.  The legislative report was provided primarily in 

writing, with very little discussion.  The Governor released his proposed budget to the State 

Legislature on January 10.  The last date to submit new bill requests to Legislative Counsel was 

January 19.  The last date for each house to pass bills introduced in 2017 was January 31.  And 

February 16 is the last date for introducing new bills for 2018.  2018 will be the final year of 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00000\30566851.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

Governor Brown’s 16 year tenure as Governor.  This year will provide many challenges including 

the commercialization of marijuana, a growing housing crisis, the impact of federal tax cuts and 

health insurance roll backs, climate change and criminal justice reform.  The two public works 

commitments at the top of the Governor’s list are the high speed rail project and the twin tunnels 

project of interest to the Contractors. 

5. General Manager’s Report.  General Manager Jennifer Pierre stated that 

DWR has requested 74 new positions at DWR, and that the Department of Fish and Wildlife has 

requested 17 new positions.  She said that the Contractors support DWR’s request for the 74 new 

positions, but they are confused about the request for 17 new positions at the Department of Fish 

and Wildlife.  

6. Energy Strategic Plan and Priority Objectives.  SWC energy expert Tim 

Haines provided a lengthy discussion of the SWC’s strategic plan and priority objectives being 

developed for energy issues.  A copy of the slides used in his presentation are enclosed with this 

memo.  The primary objective is to protect the State Water Project from continuing increases in 

energy costs, to the extent possible.  Tim stated that the energy policy steering committee is 

attempting to reestablish the role of the State Water Project in the state’s energy picture.  Years 

ago the SWP was recognized for its significate part in stabilizing the energy portfolio in California.  

The slides reveal relatively low SWP energy costs until about the year 2000, when costs began to 

increase as a result of the creation of the Independent Systems Operator and the state’s adoption 

of a policy to eliminate carbon emissions.  Since 2000 energy charges have been increasing at the 

rate of approximately $10 per acre foot per year.  The strategic plan proposes a more proactive 

role of the State Water Project going forward.  There is recognition that the status quo approach is 

not effective, leading to suggestions for increased engagement. The proposed strategy will focus 

on specific opportunities to “bend” the future cost curve, to aggressively pursue price stability, and 

to create an opportunity to transition to a “comprehensive solution.”  The comprehensive solution 

includes active engagement in addressing California’s climate challenges, and assessing what the 

State Water Project currently does to integrate renewable energy into the state’s energy portfolio.  

A straw proposal to be discussed includes completely decarbonizing the State Water Project by 

the year 2030 (an accelerated schedule) in exchange for receiving emission allowances that the 

SWP currently does not receive; developing near term operational modifications and receiving 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00000\30566851.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

transmission rate freezes; and sponsoring a study of the SWP integration of renewables and its 

commitment to the state’s energy policy.  The Contractors proposed to coordinate these efforts 

with DWR through the DWR Risk Oversight Committee.  These initiatives will require some 

additional funding, possibly increasing the energy portion of the SWC budget from $530,000 to 

as much as $916,000 next year.  

  

Michael T. Riddell  













Ending At Midnight - January 31, 2018

Graph Updated 02/01/2018 04:45 PM

LEGEND

Capacity

(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake

73% | 103%

Lake Shasta

74% | 109%
Lake Oroville

40% | 61%
Folsom Lake

60% | 115%

New Melones Lake

83% | 139%
Don Pedro Reservoir

82% | 120%

Lake McClure

66% | 138%

San Luis Reservoir

85% | 108%

Millerton Lake

71% | 112%

Lake Perris

53% | 65%
Castaic Lake

78% | 94%

Pine Flat Reservoir

52% | 110%











8-A 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

MEDIA INFORMATION 
JANUARY 2018 

 

DATE  
PACKET 

PAGE  MEDIA SOURCE  ARTICLE 

       

01/06/18  1-2  THE DESERT SUN  Snowpack Down For Colorado River 
       

01/14/18  3  THE DESERT SUN  Your Voice; New Water Rights, Rules 
Require Governance Switch 

       
01/25/18  4-5  LOS ANGELES TIMES  One Possible Delta Tunnels Deal Would 

Give Cheap Water To Farmers – And More 
Expensive Water To Cities 

       
01/31/18  6-8  THE DESERT SUN  Winter Heat Wave Bakes The Southwest, 

Bringing Renewed Worries Of Severe 
Drought 

       
01/31/18  9-10  PRESS ENTERPRISE  Cadiz New Study Offers No Harm In Water 

Plan 
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       

 























C:\Users\Kim\Desktop\01 2018 OC Activities.doc 

8-B 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

 

OUTREACH & CONSERVATION 
ACTIVITIES 

 

January 2018 
Activities: 

   1/03  DWA hosted a tour of the Operations Center, Reclamation Plant, Well 39 and Tahquitz 
reservoir for the Desert Gateway Highland youth center. 

 1/04  Vicki Petek starred in a conservation PSA to air on KESQ. 
 1/04  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ on tourism. 
 

1/04  Ashley Metzger was interviewed on the Joey English radio show. 
 

1/05  Vicki Petek completed two turf buy back post inspections. 
 

1/09  President Cioffi and Ashley Metzger attended and presented at CVWD’s board meeting to 
commemorate their 100-year celebration. 

 1/10  Director Ewing and Ashley Metzger attended Coffee with DWA at 4 Paws Coffee. 
 

1/11  Ashley Metzger attended the ONE-PS meeting. 
 

1/11  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ about CV Water Counts Academy. 
 

1/13  Ashley Metzger and Vicki Petek staffed a table and provided water and information at the Palm 
Springs Farmer’s Market. 

 
1/13  Vicki Petek staffed a DWA conservation station at Lowe’s. 

 
1/18  Vicki Petek attended an event for the Greater Coachella Valley Chamber of Commerce. 

 
1/18  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ about raw water. 

 
1/19  Ashley Metzger attended Leadership Coachella Valley. 

 
1/25  Ashley Metzger attended a commercial water audit with CVWD. 

 
1/25  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ on careers in water. 

 
1/27  DWA provided the water trailer, cups and bottles, and Vicki Petek staffed an information table 

at the Palm Springs Health Run & Fitness Expo at Ruth Hardy Park. 
 

1/30  Ashley Metzger was interviewed by KMIR about the dry winter and drought. 
 
 

Public Information Releases/eBlasts:     

 
January 2: Free online payment system – social media 

 
January 9: Coffee with DWA Tomorrow 1/10 8:30 – 9:30 at 4 Paws Coffee – social media 

 
January 18: 2018 Water Counts Academy accepting applications – website, social media  

 
Upcoming Events 

 
February 7, 8:30 to 9:30 – Coffee with DWA at Townie Bagel 

 
February 10, 8:00 to 12:30 – DWA at Palm Springs Farmer’s Market 
 

February 6, 13, 20, 27 & March 3 – 2018 Water Counts Academy sessions 

  





Language Sessions % Sessions

1. en-us 4,896 95.03%

2. en-ca 104 2.02%

3. en-gb 38 0.74%

4. (not set) 27 0.52%

5. ko 16 0.31%

6. es-xl 9 0.17%

7. es-us 8 0.16%

8. c 5 0.10%

9. de-de 4 0.08%

10. es-419 4 0.08%

Audience Overview

Jan 1, 2018 - Jan 31, 2018

Overview

 Sessions

… Jan 8 Jan 15 Jan 22 Jan 29

150150

300300

Sessions

5,152
Users

3,954
Pageviews

11,435

Pages / Session

2.22
Avg. Session Duration

00:01:57
Bounce Rate

46.97%

% New Sessions

63.68%

New Visitor Returning Visitor

36.3%

63.7%

© 2018 Google

All Users
100.00% Sessions

DWA main site

All Web Site Data GO TO REPORT

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#report/visitors-overview/a90622633w134355996p138504838/?_u.date00=20180101&_u.date01=20180131/


 

 

 

       

 

Desert Water Agency  

Facebook Analytics 

January 2018 



 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

     21 likes, 2 comments     32 likes, 1 comment          30 likes, 1 comment 

      34 likes, 1 comment                  33 video plays           22 likes, 1 comment 

         24 likes                   27 likes             12 likes 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 



 

Desert Water Agency  

Twitter Analytics 

 January 2018 

 

 

 

 


	020618 Board Agenda
	Item 2 011618 Board Minutes
	Item 3 GM Report
	Item 4A 013018 Exec Comm
	Item 6A 2016-17 replacement pipeline job accept staff report
	Item 7A SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Item 8A 020618 O&C Media
	Item 8B 020618 O&C Activities
	Blank Page


